
 
 
 

January 29, 2024 Special Board Meeting – 6:30 p.m. 
 
 

 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
The following order of business may be changed by majority vote of the Board at any meeting.     

 

 Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices        24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, Michigan 48036 
 

 
 

   * Indicates Board Action Needed   ** Indicates Roll Call Vote Needed 
 
 

A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call  

B. *Approval of Agenda for the January 29, 2024 Special Board Meeting 

C. Presentations (Strategic Plan #2) 
1. Board Appreciation Month 

************************************BREAK***************************************** 

D. Hearing of School District Patrons 
Please note: The Board will provide 30 minutes for public comment and speakers will be asked to limit their comments to 5 minutes.  If you did 
not have a chance to speak, the Board will provide additional time at the end of the meeting for public comment. 
 

E. ** Consent Agenda  
Please note: Unless removed from the Consent Agenda, items identified within the Consent Agenda will be acted on at one time.  
 

1. Budget Report 
2. Quarterly Budget Update 
3. Payment Registers 
4. Bid Award Recommendations 
5. Purchases 
6. Overtime Report 
7. Summary of Investments 
8. Summary of Wire Transfers 
9. Accounts Payable Check Register Approval Reminder 
10. Employment Recommendations 
11. Student Travel Requests 
12. December 15, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

F. Human Resources Office (Strategic Plan #1) 
1. *Teamsters Tentative Agreement 

 
G. Curriculum and Instruction Office (Strategic Plan #1) 

1. *Schools of Choice Recommendation 

H. Support Services Office (Strategic Plan #3) 
1. *Kitchen Renovations Recommendation 
2. Tennis Courts Discussion 

I. Superintendent’s Report (Strategic Plan #3) 
1. District Update 
2. *Election Resolution 

J. Hearing of School District Patrons Follow-up 

K. Board Member Comment 

L. *Adjournment  



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE  

 
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  

Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley     E.1. 

 
Board Meeting: January 29, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Budget Report 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
This report provides the Board with a monthly expenditure report, by fund, for fiscal 
year 2023-2024 displaying the original total budgeted expenditures, actual month-to- 
date expenditures, actual year-to-date encumbrances, and the remaining balance of 
unexpended expenditures in both dollar amounts and by percentage (%). 
 
 
 
Current Status: 
Attached is the Budget Report as of December 31, 2023. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends 
that the Board motion to approve the Budget Report as presented.  
 
 
RMO/jbh 
 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


 1/09/24  15.46.09                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  12/31   FISCAL PERIOD 06   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         1

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  1/09/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

11 GENERAL FUND

 111 Elementary Instruction                  29,069,550.00    3,037,577.16   10,147,560.39   15,870,211.26    3,051,778.35   10.49 %
 112 Middle/Jr. High                         13,200,179.00    1,423,993.67    4,770,584.85    7,653,166.34      776,427.81    5.88 %
 113 High School                             19,400,731.00    2,118,650.36    7,283,972.47   10,998,883.68    1,117,874.85    5.76 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                    342,226.00             .00      181,709.66             .00      160,516.34   46.90 %
 122 Special Education                       10,358,845.00    1,208,733.96    3,780,004.74    5,427,006.31    1,151,833.95   11.11 %
 125 Compensatory Education                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 127 Career & Tech Education                  2,754,418.00      273,331.51    1,155,786.96    1,323,899.60      274,731.44    9.97 %
 211 Truancy/Absenteeism Serv                   261,432.00       37,129.18      120,421.05       36,398.46      104,612.49   40.01 %
 212 Guidance Services                        1,371,125.00       32,115.50      117,597.79       25,315.08    1,228,212.13   89.57 %
 213 Health Services                            164,766.00       47,411.84      152,504.73      153,325.11      141,063.84-  85.61-%
 214 Psychological Services                     924,915.00       85,736.64      284,548.58      429,932.94      210,433.48   22.75 %
 215 Speech/Audiology Services                1,706,088.00      170,297.95      582,166.74      940,551.08      183,370.18   10.74 %
 216 Social Work Services                     1,812,606.00      162,461.77      502,371.80      885,327.28      424,906.92   23.44 %
 218 Teacher Consultant                         552,712.00       52,931.49      179,736.30      302,178.50       70,797.20   12.80 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                 1,227,383.00      113,797.13      299,438.00       81,910.39      846,034.61   68.92 %
 221 Improv of Instruction                      875,159.00      131,858.50      473,255.52      667,168.79      265,265.31-  30.31-%
 222 Educational Media Service                  780,389.00       99,777.27      305,532.99      159,309.87      315,546.14   40.43 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                  1,357,052.00      148,778.51      679,531.06      645,233.01       32,287.93    2.37 %
 229 Other Instr Staff Srvices                  119,116.00       12,720.48       60,304.04       56,999.28        1,812.68    1.52 %
 231 Board of Education                         252,700.00       13,114.26      130,197.38             .00      122,502.62   48.47 %
 232 Executive Admin                            683,425.00       99,837.02      331,682.81      237,573.94      114,168.25   16.70 %
 241 Office of Principal                      8,619,570.00      953,085.96    3,637,222.21    3,230,624.94    1,751,722.85   20.32 %
 252 Fiscal Services                          1,390,755.00      138,733.01      669,656.86      582,581.73      138,516.41    9.95 %
 257 Internal Services                            3,000.00        1,623.17-         439.93-            .00        3,439.93  114.66 %
 259 Other Business Services                     45,900.00        1,231.07       10,122.54             .00       35,777.46   77.94 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                 12,761,015.00    1,030,352.06    6,089,491.97    1,077,417.70    5,594,105.33   43.83 %
 266 Security Services                           28,654.00       14,007.04       27,382.88             .00        1,271.12    4.43 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                     6,266,862.00      752,389.21    2,961,904.77    1,071,600.76    2,233,356.47   35.63 %
 282 Communication Services                     119,340.00       16,554.33       61,746.59       53,277.62        4,315.79    3.61 %
 283 Staff Services                           1,221,473.00      138,130.15      634,391.06      322,323.14      264,758.80   21.67 %
 284 Support Services Tech                    2,041,332.00      190,726.50    1,056,205.93      716,428.44      268,697.63   13.16 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                           436,053.00       22,840.37      396,232.14       62,718.88       22,898.02-   5.25-%
 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 371 Non-Public Schl Pupils                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 492 Prior Period Adj/Non-Mat                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 624 TRANSFER OUT                                      .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

11 GENERAL FUND                    * TOTAL  120,148,771.00   12,526,680.73   47,082,824.88   53,011,364.13   20,054,581.99   16.69 %

12 ATHLETIC FUND

 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                      2,500.00             .00             .00             .00        2,500.00  100.00 %
 284 Support Services Tech                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 293 Athletic Activities                      4,751,169.00      332,479.65    2,376,192.16    1,709,130.88      665,845.96   14.01 %

12 ATHLETIC FUND                   * TOTAL    4,753,669.00      332,479.65    2,376,192.16    1,709,130.88      668,345.96   14.05 %

14 STATE GRANT FUND



 1/09/24  15.46.09                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  12/31   FISCAL PERIOD 06   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         2

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  1/09/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

 111 Elementary Instruction                     890,668.00      112,528.43      365,704.94      580,940.05       55,976.99-   6.28-%
 112 Middle/Jr. High                            397,806.00       44,039.44      141,034.96      241,801.09       14,969.95    3.76 %
 113 High School                                       .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 118 Pre-school                                 918,416.00       95,054.50      298,823.69       25,374.31      594,218.00   64.70 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 122 Special Education                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 125 Compensatory Education                   3,489,987.00      470,559.36    1,489,135.66    1,857,995.60      142,855.74    4.09 %
 127 Career & Tech Education                     83,100.00             .00             .00       82,950.00          150.00     .18 %
 131 Adult/Cont Ed Basic                        184,765.00       26,825.27       78,216.17       70,988.46       35,560.37   19.24 %
 132 Adult/Cont Ed Secondary                      9,067.00             .00        9,339.12             .00          272.12-   3.00-%
 211 Truancy/Absenteeism Serv                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 212 Guidance Services                        1,840,795.00      206,701.95      699,755.62    1,057,018.91       84,020.47    4.56 %
 213 Health Services                              8,431.00           99.32-            .01             .00        8,430.99   99.99 %
 216 Social Work Services                     1,074,138.00       62,027.56      195,410.41      374,676.05      504,051.54   46.92 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 221 Improv of Instruction                      188,291.00       23,701.49       61,743.43       76,541.12       50,006.45   26.55 %
 222 Educational Media Service                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 225 Technology Assisted Inst                       470.00             .00          216.00             .00          254.00   54.04 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                    261,179.00       42,356.17      156,040.58      159,758.87       54,620.45-  20.91-%
 227 Academic Stu Assessment                     12,309.00             .00       11,100.00             .00        1,209.00    9.82 %
 229 Other Instr Staff Srvices                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 231 Board of Education                                .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 232 Executive Admin                                   .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 233 Grant Writer/Procurement                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 241 Office of Principal                        629,302.00       61,268.06      198,041.38      346,447.03       84,813.59   13.47 %
 252 Fiscal Services                             16,999.00        1,943.60        8,399.78        8,500.46           98.76     .58 %
 257 Internal Services                              783.00             .00             .00             .00          783.00  100.00 %
 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                    455,204.00       31,773.50       31,923.50       26,056.25      397,224.25   87.26 %
 266 Security Services                          304,902.00       42,388.81      109,195.87       98,227.97       97,478.16   31.97 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                        12,505.00             .00        4,457.75             .00        8,047.25   64.35 %
 281 Plan, Research & Dev                         1,600.00             .00             .00             .00        1,600.00  100.00 %
 282 Communication Services                         450.00             .00             .00             .00          450.00  100.00 %
 283 Staff Services                               1,175.00             .00          550.00             .00          625.00   53.19 %
 284 Support Services Tech                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                            55,320.00        7,225.23       27,953.69          601.74       26,764.57   48.38 %
 289 Other Central Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 291 Pupil Activities                               541.00          254.92          790.96             .00          249.96-  46.20-%
 311 Community Serv Direction                    12,111.00             .00             .00             .00       12,111.00  100.00 %
 331 Community Activities                         8,923.00             .00          965.64-            .00        9,888.64  110.82 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                      8,667.00          881.10        2,599.05             .00        6,067.95   70.01 %
 371 Non-Public Schl Pupils                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 391 Other Community Services                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 411 Payments Oth K-12/In Stat                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                   13,644.00             .00             .00        4,145.86        9,498.14   69.61 %
 611 FUND MOD - GENERAL FUND                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

14 STATE GRANT FUND                * TOTAL   10,881,548.00    1,229,430.07    3,889,466.93    5,012,023.77    1,980,057.30   18.19 %

15 FEDERAL GRANTS

 111 Elementary Instruction                     273,123.00       30,159.64       98,759.09      163,827.20       10,536.71    3.85 %



 1/09/24  15.46.09                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  12/31   FISCAL PERIOD 06   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         3

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  1/09/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

 112 Middle/Jr. High                            178,063.00       18,460.37       65,404.60       99,462.87       13,195.53    7.41 %
 113 High School                                 50,158.00       11,569.30       49,553.00       67,114.12       66,509.12- 132.59-%
 118 Pre-school                                  67,512.00             .00             .00             .00       67,512.00  100.00 %
 119 Summer School/Basic Pgm                    348,310.00             .00        3,427.31             .00      344,882.69   99.01 %
 122 Special Education                        2,546,504.00      242,898.24      822,489.43    1,329,676.21      394,338.36   15.48 %
 125 Compensatory Education                     937,386.00       61,995.79      234,145.27      290,505.80      412,734.93   44.03 %
 127 Career & Tech Education                     89,642.00       11,298.77       29,311.13           33.72       60,297.15   67.26 %
 131 Adult/Cont Ed Basic                         82,903.00       10,538.79       34,287.89       58,444.83        9,829.72-  11.85-%
 132 Adult/Cont Ed Secondary                    109,925.00       11,921.20       40,894.88       70,971.60        1,941.48-   1.76-%
 211 Truancy/Absenteeism Serv                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 212 Guidance Services                          556,009.00      132,644.47      449,491.84      725,316.43      618,799.27- 111.29-%
 214 Psychological Services                     192,321.00       18,041.94       91,524.76      102,921.59        2,125.35-   1.10-%
 215 Speech/Audiology Services                   69,182.00       12,065.26       40,469.83       69,952.57       41,240.40-  59.61-%
 216 Social Work Services                       106,047.00       14,119.65       37,017.92       59,670.67        9,358.41    8.82 %
 218 Teacher Consultant                         581,993.00       65,352.22      191,084.78      355,056.11       35,852.11    6.16 %
 219 Other Pupil Support Serv                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 221 Improv of Instruction                      614,389.00       48,988.56      161,981.28      275,728.50      176,679.22   28.75 %
 222 Educational Media Service                    3,324.00             .00             .00             .00        3,324.00  100.00 %
 225 Technology Assisted Inst                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 226 Superv/Direc Inst Staff                    139,470.00       17,309.29       56,108.99       99,594.85       16,233.84-  11.63-%
 227 Academic Stu Assessment                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 229 Other Instr Staff Srvices                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 231 Board of Education                           2,000.00             .00             .00             .00        2,000.00  100.00 %
 232 Executive Admin                                   .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 241 Office of Principal                               .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 252 Fiscal Services                             48,701.00        5,778.10       18,677.33       24,183.66        5,840.01   11.99 %
 257 Internal Services                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                    250,492.00             .00      146,165.40             .00      104,326.60   41.64 %
 266 Security Services                            8,767.00        1,001.80        2,898.78             .67        5,867.55   66.92 %
 271 Pupil Trans Services                         6,646.00             .00        1,844.00             .00        4,802.00   72.25 %
 281 Plan, Research & Dev                         3,801.00             .00             .00             .00        3,801.00  100.00 %
 282 Communication Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 283 Staff Services                                 260.00             .00             .00             .00          260.00  100.00 %
 284 Support Services Tech                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 285 Pupil Accounting                            74,064.00        1,665.61        6,259.01             .00       67,804.99   91.54 %
 289 Other Central Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 331 Community Activities                        68,736.00        5,070.60       19,855.62       18,584.81       30,295.57   44.07 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                           .00             .00             .01             .00             .01-    .00 %
 361 Welfare Activities                           4,070.00          318.39        1,031.39             .00        3,038.61   74.65 %
 371 Non-Public Schl Pupils                      70,600.00        8,924.50       10,462.56          800.00       59,337.44   84.04 %
 391 Other Community Services                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 411 Payments Oth K-12/In Stat                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 611 FUND MOD - GENERAL FUND                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

15 FEDERAL GRANTS                  * TOTAL    7,484,398.00      730,122.49    2,613,146.10    3,811,846.21    1,059,405.69   14.15 %

25 CAFETERIA

 252 Fiscal Services                              3,200.00        8,953.38       23,619.17       34,821.46       55,240.63- 726.26-%



 1/09/24  15.46.09                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  12/31   FISCAL PERIOD 06   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         4

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  1/09/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

 259 Other Business Services                     55,000.00       10,203.58-       6,732.36             .00       48,267.64   87.75 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                     56,405.00        3,097.28       28,516.35        3,770.38       24,118.27   42.75 %
 266 Security Services                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 297 Food Services                            5,275,769.00      295,404.88    1,911,985.49      547,225.22    2,816,558.29   53.38 %
 411 Payments Oth K-12/In Stat                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 611 FUND MOD - GENERAL FUND                    200,000.00             .00             .00             .00      200,000.00  100.00 %

25 CAFETERIA                       * TOTAL    5,590,374.00      297,251.96    1,970,853.37      585,817.06    3,033,703.57   54.26 %

26 COMMUNITY EDUCATION FUND

 259 Other Business Services                     31,696.00        1,068.39       24,664.58             .00        7,031.42   22.18 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                        250.00          926.45          926.45             .00          676.45- 270.58-%
 283 Staff Services                                    .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                   280,644.00       35,125.78      135,592.86        6,043.00      139,008.14   49.53 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                    188,801.00       77,222.43      263,149.99       25,160.16       99,509.15-  52.70-%
 391 Other Community Services                   198,224.00             .00      164,394.08             .00       33,829.92   17.06 %

26 COMMUNITY EDUCATION FUND        * TOTAL      699,615.00      114,343.05      588,727.96       31,203.16       79,683.88   11.38 %

27 PRESCHOOL FUND

 118 Pre-school                                 442,670.00       58,209.46      171,658.68        2,935.85      268,075.47   60.55 %
 241 Office of Principal                               .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 261 Operating Bldg Services                     90,900.00        6,728.90       29,067.82       10,502.59       51,329.59   56.46 %
 311 Community Serv Direction                     6,600.00          136.59        1,815.03             .00        4,784.97   72.49 %
 351 Cust & Care of Children                    534,756.00       70,231.25      252,202.51      101,473.69      181,079.80   33.86 %

27 PRESCHOOL FUND                  * TOTAL    1,074,926.00      135,306.20      454,744.04      114,912.13      505,269.83   47.00 %

29 STUDENT/SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUNDS

 296 Oth Stu/Schl Activity Exp                    2,424.00        3,157.00        3,157.00             .00          733.00-  30.23-%

29 STUDENT/SCHOOL ACTIVITY FUNDS   * TOTAL        2,424.00        3,157.00        3,157.00             .00          733.00-  30.23-%

31 2004 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

31 2004 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

32 2005 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

32 2005 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %



 1/09/24  15.46.09                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  12/31   FISCAL PERIOD 06   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         5

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  1/09/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

33 2006 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

33 2006 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

34 2015 SWAPTION (FORMERLY 2008 S

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 634 Fund Modification                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

34 2015 SWAPTION (FORMERLY 2008 S  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

35 2021 REFUNDER

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00    1,190,389.55             .00    1,190,389.55-    .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

35 2021 REFUNDER                   * TOTAL             .00             .00    1,190,389.55             .00    1,190,389.55-    .00 %

36 2017 REFUNDER SERIES A- DEBT R

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

36 2017 REFUNDER SERIES A- DEBT R  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

37 2015 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00      559,448.04             .00      559,448.04-    .00 %

37 2015 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00             .00      559,448.04             .00      559,448.04-    .00 %

38 2012 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 635 Fund Mod Fund 35                                  .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

38 2012 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

39 2023 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT

 511 Debt Service - Long Term                          .00             .00      986,056.11             .00      986,056.11-    .00 %
 512 Payments Escrow Agent                             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 634 Fund Modification                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %



 1/09/24  15.46.09                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  12/31   FISCAL PERIOD 06   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         6

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  1/09/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

 637 Fund Modification                                 .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

39 2023 REFUNDER- DEBT RETIREMENT  * TOTAL             .00             .00      986,056.11             .00      986,056.11-    .00 %

41 CAPITAL PROJECTS CHESTERFIELD

 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 451 Site Acquisition Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 459 Othr Facilities Acq & Con                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 644 OPERATING TRANSFER OUT                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

41 CAPITAL PROJECTS CHESTERFIELD   * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

42 23 MILE AND NORTH AVE SALE OF

 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 451 Site Acquisition Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 459 Othr Facilities Acq & Con                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 644 OPERATING TRANSFER OUT                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

42 23 MILE AND NORTH AVE SALE OF   * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

43 CAPITAL PROJECT FUND

 451 Site Acquisition Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 459 Othr Facilities Acq & Con                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 611 FUND MOD - GENERAL FUND                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

43 CAPITAL PROJECT FUND            * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

44 BLD & SITE 2002 SERIES 2

 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 451 Site Acquisition Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 459 Othr Facilities Acq & Con                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 644 OPERATING TRANSFER OUT                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

44 BLD & SITE 2002 SERIES 2        * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

45 BLD & SITE 2005 SERIES I

 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %



 1/09/24  15.46.09                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  12/31   FISCAL PERIOD 06   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         7

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
FUNC DESCRIPTION                             BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  1/09/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

 451 Site Acquisition Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 644 OPERATING TRANSFER OUT                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

45 BLD & SITE 2005 SERIES I        * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

46 BLD & SITE 2008

 299 Other Support Services                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 456 Bldg Improvments Services                  623,091.00       47,788.55      422,733.92       48,296.70      152,060.38   24.40 %
 644 OPERATING TRANSFER OUT                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %
 645 FUND MOD-2005 CAP PROJ                            .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

46 BLD & SITE 2008                 * TOTAL      623,091.00       47,788.55      422,733.92       48,296.70      152,060.38   24.40 %

47 B & S 2010 SERIES A TAXABLE

 456 Bldg Improvments Services                  118,574.00        3,342.75       33,898.47        3,418.36       81,257.17   68.52 %

47 B & S 2010 SERIES A TAXABLE     * TOTAL      118,574.00        3,342.75       33,898.47        3,418.36       81,257.17   68.52 %

48 B & S 2010 SERIES B BABS

 456 Bldg Improvments Services                         .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

48 B & S 2010 SERIES B BABS        * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

62 SCHOLARSHIP FUND

 298 Oth Priv Purpose Trust Ex                         .00            3.00       18,340.07             .00       18,340.07-    .00 %

62 SCHOLARSHIP FUND                * TOTAL             .00            3.00       18,340.07             .00       18,340.07-    .00 %

81 SPDI INTERNAL SERVICE FUND

 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

81 SPDI INTERNAL SERVICE FUND      * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

82 Health Care Stabilization Inte

 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

82 Health Care Stabilization Inte  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

83 Compensated Absence Internal S



 1/09/24  15.46.09                          EXPENSE SUMMARY BY FUNCTION                                  LANHAUFFJU       FX0288
L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS    PERIOD ENDING  12/31   FISCAL PERIOD 06   YEAR 2024       WORKING                   PAGE         8

WORKING           ACTUAL          ACTUAL       ENCUMBRANCES      REMAINING     %
BUDGET        MO TO DATE      YR TO DATE    AS OF  1/09/24      BALANCE   UNEXPEND

 259 Other Business Services                           .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

83 Compensated Absence Internal S  * TOTAL             .00             .00             .00             .00             .00     .00 %

** GRAND TOTALS  151,377,390.00   15,419,905.45   62,189,978.60   64,328,012.40   24,859,399.00   16.42 %
 *BUDGET # 01 Working                                   WORKING



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

     
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 
WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

Hilary E. Dubay   Amelia A. Servial    Sharon L. Ross         Terri M. Spencer Mary L. Hilton Adam D. Lipski Shane W. Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

  

Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley     E.2. 

 
Board Meeting: January 29, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Quarterly Budget Update 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
The purpose of the Comparative Statement is to compare the current to date revenues 
and expenditures to the year-to-date revenues and expenditures of the prior year.  Also 
displayed is the current year Board approved budget and the year-to-date projected 
budget. 
 
 
Current Status: 
The Quarterly Budget Update as of December 31, 2023 is attached. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends 
that the Board motion to approve the Quarterly Budget as presented. 
 

 

 
RMO/jbh 
 

 

http://www.lc-ps.org/






Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

     
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  

   

 E.3. 
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley  
  
Board Meeting: January 29, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Payment Registers 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
The Payment Register for All Funds is presented to the Board of Education each month 
for review, per the Consent Agenda. All funds for each check run for the month are 
summarized and totaled by fund and check run.  The detail documents are included with 
the signatures of two Board members.  
 
 
Current Status: 
The Payment Register for All Funds are presented as of December 31, 2023, as follows: 
 

• December 13, 2023 

• Purchase Card Reports for November 2023 (reviewed) 
 
 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends that 
the Board motion to approve the Payment Registers as presented. 
 
 

RMO/jbh 



























































































Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                      
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 

 

 E.4.   
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley 
 
Board Meeting: January 29, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Bid Award Recommendations  
 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other:  ______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
The award of bids and Requests for Proposal require the approval of the Board of 
Education.   
 
 
Current Status: 
As of December 31, 2023, one recommendation meets the requirements. Refer to Food Service 
Renovations under Support Services. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration is presenting 

for informational purposes only. 

 
 
RMO/jbh 
 



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 
 

Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley    E.5. 

 

Board Meeting: January 29, 2024 
 

Agenda Item:  Purchases 
 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 

Background: 
During the normal course of business, district personnel will purchase items needed to 
administer the business operations of the schools or administrative offices.  In order to provide 
a review process of the purchases, the board has established a policy that all purchases in excess 
of $10,000 from the building and site fund and general fund purchases in excess of the state’s 
competitive bid threshold (currently at $29,572.00) be reported to the board on a monthly 
basis. 

 
Current Status: 
As of December 31, 2023, there is one purchase that meets the Board requirements. 
 

Fund Vendor Description Amount 

Bond Stafford-Smith Hobart Mixer- 60 Quart (New) Culinary Arts $24,784.00 

 

Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends that 
the Board motion to approve the Purchase as presented.  
 
 
 
RMO/jbh 

























Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

 

Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley    E.6. 
 
Board Meeting: January 29, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Overtime Report 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
This report provides the Board with a monthly overtime variance report, by hours, for 
fiscal year 2023-2024, which displays the current month’s actual paid overtime hours for 
the current year in comparison with the same month’s actual paid overtime hours for 
the previous year.  Additionally, this report displays the current year’s overtime hours 
on a year-to-date basis and the total overtime hours incurred for the previous 2023 
fiscal year.   
 
 
Current Status: 
The report for December 31, 2023 has been reviewed by the respective administrator of 
each building/department.  
 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends 
that the Board motion to approve the Overtime Report as presented. 

 
RMO/jbh 
 



December December Difference FY2024 FY2023

2023-24 2022-23 Over (Under)

Year-to- 

Date Total OT

Operations & Maintenance:     

Custodians 839.77 297.25 542.52        2,635.01              5,246.02 

Food & Nutrition 63.70 5.59 58.11 111.88 117.30

Grounds 7.66 36.33 (28.67) 164.37 533.75

Maintenance 31.08 26.58 4.50 177.03 378.87

Warehouse 0.41 1.00 (0.59) 4.59 22.41

Transportation - Bus Drivers 671.53 341.60 329.93        1,613.43              2,301.02 

Transportation - Mechanics 17.80 10.00 7.80 38.50 219.55

Transportation - Dispatch/Secretary 3.50 0.00 3.50 3.50 126.25

Business Office:

Payroll 0.00 11.08 (11.08) 0.00 11.08

Technology  

Clerical 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13.00

Buildings:

Curriculum/Athletics/Swim Mgmt 9.38 0.00 9.38 14.70 13.04

Elementary Secretary 0.00 3.34 (3.34) 0.00 23.87

Secondary Secretary 2.50 3.50 (1.00) 2.50 53.08

Elementary Administrative Aide 0.00 4.18 (4.18) 0.00 25.89

Programs & Other:

Aides Instructional & Band 6.60 0.00 0.00 21.35 184.03

Aides Noninstructional - Noon Aide 91.30 30.36 2.00 230.35 418.35

Aides Noninstructional - Supervisory 0.00 4.72 (4.72) 0.00 34.16

Aides Special Ed 21.20 2.05 19.15 21.93 55.47

Child Care-Secretary/Teacher 0.00 21.67 (21.67) 1.50 131.10

SDC/SACC 67.24 34.73 32.51 338.76 731.96

     Total        1,833.67           833.98                 934.15        5,379.40            10,640.20 

 

L’ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS

OVERTIME HOUR REPORT

for Fiscal Year 2023/2024



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

  

Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley     E.7. 

 
Board Meeting: January 29, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Summary of Investments 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
Part of fiscal management is to invest available cash funds in order to earn income for the 
district.  As investing does include risk, both interest rate risk and credit risk, the board has 
established a policy that a report on investments be provided on a monthly basis. 

 
 
Current Status: 
The report reflected in the document is for the time period as of December 31, 2023 and 
includes the investing institution, type of investment, amount invested, interest rate as well as 
which fund made the investment. 

 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends that 
the Board motion to approve the Summary of Investments as presented. 
  
RMO/jbh 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Summary of investments as of: December 31, 2023  

 

   

Institution Type  Amount Rate Date 

Purchased 

Due Date Fund Number 

of Days 

 

JPMorgan Chase 

 

Checking 

 

$9,463,516.99 

 

N/A 

 

Varies 

 

Immediate 

 

GF 

 

- 

        

JPMorgan Chase Checking $620,694.80 N/A Varies Immediate  IF - 

        

JPMorgan Chase 

 

Checking $21,076,229.83 N/A Varies Immediate DF - 

Fifth Third Bank Depository $2,582,223.88 N/A Varies Immediate  GF - 

        

Fifth Third Bank Depository $1,538,037.79 N/A Varies Immediate  IF - 

        

Fifth Third Bank Depository $3,707,645.37 N/A Varies Immediate  CF - 

        

Fifth Third Bank 

 

Checking 

 

$541,442.43 N/A N/A Immediate 2010 

B&S 

 

- 

 

Bank of America Checking $53,194.34 N/A N/A Immediate  2008 - 

      B&S  

 

MILAF Investment $67,278.42 N/A N/A Immediate 2008 

B&S 

 

- 

 

MILAF 

 

MILAF 

 

 

Investment 

 

Investment 

   

$5,109182.54 

 

$3,057,374.76 

 

N/A 

 

N/A 

 

N/A 

 

N/A 

 

Varies 

 

Varies 

 

GF 

 

IF 

 

        

NOTE:        

State Aid Payment –  

December 20, 2023 

Deposited to JPMorgan Chase                                      

 $9,218,096.26  N/A    

 

B&S = Building & Site 

CF = Cafeteria Fund 

DF = Debt Fund 

GF = General Fund 

 IF = Internal Fund 

  

 

  

 

 Rates as of December 29, 2023: 
Federal Reserve  

     Non-Asset Backed     30 days       5.30 

          60 days       N/A 

     Asset Backed         30 days       5.37 

          60 days       5.38 

 

Note: n.a. indicates trade data insufficient to 

support calculation of the particular rate. 



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE

                                       
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 
586.783.6300  

586.783.6312 FAX 

 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

  
 

    

Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley    E.8. 

  
Board Meeting: January 29, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Summary of Wire Transfers 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
 
Background: 
In order to conduct financial management transactions, wiring money to and from the district’s 
bank accounts is part of the business office operations.  To provide oversight of this process a 
monthly report is prepared by the accountant.  The report includes the date of transaction, the 
bank accounts involved in the transactions, the reason for the wire transfer, the amount and the 
fund requesting the transfer. 

 
 
Current Status: 
The report submitted is as of December 31, 2023, and summarizes the wire transfers for the 
General, Debt, Cafeteria and Trust & Agency funds. 

 
 
Future Direction (Comments or Motion)/Recommended Motion: 
This report is a component item of the consent agenda and Administration recommends that 
the Board motion to approve the Summary of Wire Transfers as presented.  
 
RMO/jbh 

 



 

L’ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

Summary of General, Debt, Cafeteria and Trust & Agency Funds Wire Activity  

December 1 through December 31, 2023 

 

  1 of 1  

1 12/01/23 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Wells Fargo Bank 12/01/23 Annuities Funding ($140,656.25) Wire GF 

2 12/04/23 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

BMO Purchasing Card Activity through Nov 27th ($129,690.56) Wire GF 

3 12/05/23 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Bank of America Employee Severance Payout ($500.00) Wire GF 

4 12/14/23 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Bank of America 12/15/23 PR Direct Deposit ($1,538,976.77) Wire GF 

5 12/14/23 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

MSGCU 12/15/23 Net Payroll Deductions ($313,695.72) Wire GF 

6 12/15/23 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Wells Fargo Bank 12/15/23 Annuities Funding ($137,940.29) Wire GF 

7 12/28/23 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Bank of America 12/29/23 PR Direct Deposit ($1,558,871.77) Wire GF 

8 12/28/23 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

MSGCU 12/29/23 Net Payroll Deductions ($310,532.17) Wire GF 

9 12/29/23 JPMorgan Chase 

GF 

Wells Fargo Bank 12/29/23 Annuities Funding ($159,361.83) Wire GF 

 



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

BUSINESS OFFICE 
 

 

Rochelle M. O’Malley 
                 ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT FOR  
                         BUSINESS AND OPERATIONS 

 

Beth Disbrow 
                                       DIRECTOR FOR FINANCE 

                                      
24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 

CLINTON Twp., MI  48036-1304 

 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam Lipski   Hilary Dubay    Sharon. Ross         Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT    VICE PRESIDENT     SECRETARY           TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 

in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 

Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 

Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 

 

        

             

       

E.9. 
Initiator:  Rochelle M. O’Malley 
 
Board Meeting: January 29, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Accounts Payable Check Register 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
The accounts payable check listing is reviewed by members of the board of education. They may review 
the paperwork, if necessary, and each will sign the check register. 

 
 
Current Status: 
The following Board Members are assigned to approve the Accounts Payable Check Register on the 
following dates: 
 

Review Dates Approvers 

Feb.  1 & 2, 2024 A. Doss & A. Lipski 

Feb. 15 & 16, 2024 J. Da Via & A. Servial 

Feb. 29 & March 1, 2024 S. Ross & S. Sellers 
 

 
*The Purchase Card Report for December 2023 will be included with the January 31, 2024 check run. 
 

 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
This status is provided as a schedule reminder.   

 
RMO/jbh 



Erik J. Edoff 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 
HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

Dr. Greg Dixon 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

Anita Dzieszkowski 
COORDINATOR FOR 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300  
586.783.6311 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam D. Lipski Hilary E. Dubay Sharon L. Ross Amelia A. Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane W. Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE 
 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 
in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 
Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 
Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER 
AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Initiator:  Greg Dixon 
  
Board Meeting:  January 29, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Employment Recommendations 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 
Background:   
The attached list contains candidates who have been recommended for employment in the position/building that 
is indicated, as well as current employees who are being recommended for a change in some aspect of their 
employment status.  
 
Current Status:   
The Human Resources department has received, from the appropriate administrator, a recommendation for the 
action listed along with any required documentation. Interviews and reference checks, if applicable, have been 
completed.  The Employment Recommendations are being submitted for approval by the Board. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion:   
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the Employment Recommendations as presented. 
 
 
GD/af 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

E.10. 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


Employment Reccomendations 

January 29, 2024

# * Name Assignment Remarks Effective Degree/Step

INSTRUCTIONAL

1 Gurche, Allison Teacher, South River Elementary School Resignation 1/15/2024

2 Kosi, Adam Athletic Worker, L'Anse Creuse Middle School - East New Position 12/7/2023 Per 

Supplemental 

Contract

3 MacLeod, Danielle Counselor, L'Anse Creuse High School Replaces Rosalynn Bossenbery 1/8/2024

4 McBride, Lindsey Teacher, South River Elementary School Replaces Karen Fraeyman 1/8/2024 BA Step 1 

($42,549) 

prorated

5 McGee, Kari 7th Grade Girls Basketball Coach, L'Anse Creuse 

Middle School - North

Replaces Steve Sikorski 1/15/2024 Per 

Supplemental 

Contract

6 Michell, Brian Athletic Worker, L'Anse Creuse Middle School - East New Position 1/10/2024 Per 

Supplemental 

Contract

7 Moceri, Michelle Teacher, L'Anse Creuse Middle School - Central Resignation 1/12/2024

8 Roraff, Lindsay Teacher, Marie C. Graham Elementary School Leave of Absence (First Request) 1/26/2024-

6/13/2024

9 Rosati, Sneha Teacher, L'Anse Creuse Middle School - North Leave of Absence (First Request) 1/29/2024-

6/13/2024

10 Siefert, Leslie Teacher, L'Anse Creuse Middle School - Central Resignation 1/26/2024

11 * Zweng, Denise Teacher, L'Anse Creuse Middle School - South Replaces Erika Lesniak 1/22/2024 MA Step 13 

($79,110) 

prorated

1 * Amicucci, Amanda Class IV SACC/Summer Day Camp Secretary, Harry L. 

Wheeler Community Center & Administrative Offices

Replaces Tricia Piejak 1/29/2024 $18.06 

2 Buckman, Jerome School Bus Driver, Larry F. Brender Support Services 

Center

Resignation 1/9/2024

3 Cirillo, Amy Class III Kitchen Manager, Marie C. Graham 

Elementary School

Replaces Brigida Loukas 12/1/2023

Non-Instructional



Employment Reccomendations 

January 29, 2024

4 Couture, Cassandra Paraprofessional, DiAnne M. Pellerin Center Retirement (23 years, 3 months) 12/31/2023

5 Fandrick, Amy School Bus Driver, Larry F. Brender Support Services 

Center

New Position 12/4/2023 $19.50 

6 * Fortner, Jalen Assistant Varsity Football Coach, L'Anse Creuse High 

School

Edustaff Conversion 8/7/2023 Per 

Supplemental 

Contract

7 Gjergji, Marjeta Custodian, Francis A. Higgins Elementary School Replaces Mike Gonyeau 12/4/2023 $16.76 

8 Heilig, Cindy Class IV Kitchen Manager, L'Anse Creuse Middle 

School - South

Replaces Barbara Picklo 1/8/2024 $17.74 

9 * Holmes, Holly Medical Aide, L'Anse Creuse Middle School - Central Replaces Brandi Dubay 12/4/2023 $16.85 

10 Karschnia, Hope Class IV Secretary to the Director, Frederick V. 

Pankow Center

Replaces Aaren Amersdorfer 11/27/2023 $19.33 

11 Keidel, Ryan Custodian, L'Anse Creuse Middle School - North Replaces Heather Plotzke 1/8/2024 $16.91 

12 Legato, Pamela School Bus Driver, Larry F. Brender Support Services 

Center

Leave of Absence (First Request) 1/08/2024-

1/07/2025

13 Lobbestael, Diane Administrative Assistant for Curriculum and 

Instruction, Harry L. Wheeler Community Center & 

Administrative Offices

Retirement (23 years, 4 months) 6/28/2024

14 * McLaughlin, Teagan Paraprofessional, Frederick V. Pankow Center Replaces Claudia Hofbauer 1/16/2024 $16.37 

15 Piejak, Tricia Administrative Assistant for Curriculum and 

Instruction, Harry L. Wheeler Community Center & 

Administrative Offices

Replaces Diane Lobbestael 1/22/2024 $60,056.87 

(prorated)

16 Plotzke, Heather Custodian, L'Anse Creuse Middle School - North Resignation 12/13/2023

17 * Rogers, Andrianna Class I Food & Nutrition Floater, Larry F. Brender 

Support Services Center

Replaces Amy Cirillo 12/20/2023 $14.86 

18 Saari, Evelyn Class III Elementary Kitchen Manager, Marie C. 

Graham Elementary School

Replaces Cindy Heilig 12/13/2023 $14.86 



Employment Reccomendations 

January 29, 2024

19 * Shereda, Alexandra Dive Coach, L'Anse Creuse High School - North Replaces Anthony Cicola 12/7/2023 Per 

Supplemental 

Contract

20 Smith, Michelle Class IV Secretary to the Principal, L'Anse Creuse 

Middle School - North

Resignation 1/7/2024

21 Staton, Breanna JV Volleyball Coach, L'Anse Creuse High School - 

North

Edustaff Conversion 8/7/2023 Per 

Supplemental 

Contract

22 * Stuve, Nicole Paraprofessional, L'Anse Creuse Middle School - 

Central

Replaces Corra Lamorand 1/8/2024 $16.37 

23 * Sumbera, Sara Class IV Secretary to the Principal, Marie C. Graham 

Elementary School

Replaces Hope Karschnia 12/11/2023 $16.88 

24 Swanson, Jessica Class I Cook/Cashier, South River Elementary School Replaces Evelyn Saari 1/8/2024 $13.03 

25 Terry, Makiyah Freshman Volleyball Coach, L'Anse Creuse High 

School - North

Edustaff Conversion 8/7/2023 Per 

Supplemental 

Contract

26 Thomas, Alicia Paraprofessional, Marie C. Graham Elementary 

School

Leave of Absence 2/15/2024-

4/29/2024

27 * VanderVlucht, Eryn Head Varsity Softball Coach, L'Anse Creuse High 

School - North

Replaces Taylor Moceri 1/17/2024 Per 

Supplemental 

Contract

28 Walkowiak, Gloria School Bus Aide, Larry F. Brender Support Services 

Center

Leave of Absence 2/5/2024-

8/12/2024

29 Williams, Peter School Bus Driver, Larry F. Brender Support Services 

Center

New Position 12/11/2023 $19.50 

30 Willis, Kennedy SACC Aide, Joseph M. Carkenord Elementary School Resignation 12/21/2023



BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 
Adam Lipski Hilary Dubay Sharon Ross Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY  TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or 
marital status in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, 
L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries 
related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

Erik J. Edoff 
SUPERINTENDENT 

 
Lisa E. Montpas 

ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 
FOR CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION 

 
Kimberly Rawski 

DIRECTOR FOR 
SECONDARY EDUCATION 

 
Laura Dixon 
DIRECTOR FOR 

ELEMENTARY EDUCATION 
 
 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300 
586.783.6312 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

 

 

DEPARTMENT OF CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Initiator:  Lisa Montpas   
 
Board Meeting: January 29, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Student Travel Requests 
 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
According to Board Policy Article VIII, Section 19 Field Trips and Other District Sponsored Trips “Board 
approval is required for field trips and other District-sponsored trips which are planned to take students 
out of the United States or overnight.” 
 
 
Current Status: 
The following student travel requests have been received for approval.  These student travel trips are 
educational trips, aligned to curriculum, chaperoned and organized by School Personnel: 
 

1. Student travel is requested for 85 Middle School South choir and band students to travel to Cedar Pointe, 
Sandusky, Ohio on May 18, 2024.  The students will perform in a festival competition.  The trip is 
requested by Ray Sarver.  There will be 2 staff; R. Sarver and L. Ihnat and 13 parents to chaperone the trip. 

2. Student travel is requested for 47 Middle School Central 8th Grade students to travel to Washington D.C. 
on March 4, 2024 and return March 7, 2024. The students will explore monuments, museums and other 
historical attractions.  The trip is requested by K. Warren.  There will be 2 staff, K. Warren and S. 
Sonnenfeld, and 19 parents to chaperone the trip. 

3. Student travel is requested for 10 Pankow FFA Students to travel to East Lansing on February 28, 2024 and 
return on March 1, 2024.  The students will attend the FFA State Convention to compete.  The trip is 
requested by Holly Glomski.  There will be 1 staff member to chaperone the trip. 

 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments): 
Administration is recommending approval for the above student travel requests. 

E.11. 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


 
 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

DECEMBER 15, 2023 – 3:00 P.M. 
The Board of Education of the L’Anse Creuse Public Schools district convened a Regular Board Meeting on 
Friday, December 15, 2023 at 3:00 p.m. at the Harry L. Wheeler Community Center an Administrative Offices, 
located at 24076 F.V. Pankow Boulevard, Clinton Township, Michigan. 

 
A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call 

 
Mrs. Dubay President, called the Regular Board Meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

 
Roll Call 

 
Present: Mrs. Hilary Dubay, President  

Mr. Adam Lipski, Vice President 
Mrs. Sharon Ross, Secretary 

 Mrs. Amelia Servial, Treasurer 
Mr. John Da Via, Trustee 
Mr. Al Doss, Trustee 
Mr. Shane Sellers, Trustee 

 
Also present: Mr. Erik Edoff, Superintendent 

Ms. Lisa Montpas, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum & Instruction 
Dr. Greg Dixon, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources 
Ms. Rochelle O’Malley, Assistant Superintendent for Business & Operations 
Ms. Nancy Supanich, Director for Special Education 
Ms. Laura Holbert, Director for Elementary Education 
Mr. Donald Gratton, Director for Operations 
Mr. Brandon Streng, Director for Technology  
Mrs. Nicolette Trask, Executive Assistant to the Superintendent 
Employees and Patrons of the District 

 
B. Approval of Agenda 

 
Motion by Mrs. Servial, supported by Mr. Doss, to approve the December 15, 2023 Regular Board 
Meeting Agenda as presented.  Discussion followed. 

 
Yes: All 
No: None 
Motion carried. 

 
C. Presentations 
 
C.1. Mr. Edoff introduced Jacob Mason and Alex Habarth, student council members from L’Anse Creuse 

High School, who shared information on a Shoe Drive charity fundraiser taking place in January 2024. 
 

C.2. Mr. Edoff recognized Mr. Chris Zoller, Physical Education teacher at Green Elementary, who recently 
provided aid to an individual by using his AED training through the district, and assisted with saving a 
person’s life at his local gym.  

 
Mr. Edoff also recognized Ms. Elizabeth Allen, District Media Technician, who recently led a holiday 
toy drive for the Children’s Hospital of Michigan, gathering toys from five elementary schools in the  

 



L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

 
MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF DECEMBER 15, 2023  PAGE 2 

 
 

district.  The Board presented Mr. Zoller and Ms. Allen a Certificate of Excellence. 
 
The Board and Administration thanked students for attending the meeting and including the school 
community in their fundraiser. The Board also recognized the teachers for their efforts and stated how 
proud they are and are thankful they are a part of the L’Anse Creuse team. 

 
Mrs. Dubay called a break from 3:15-3:22 p.m. 
 
D. Hearing of School District Patrons 

 
Ms. Kelly McDevitt, teacher in the district, addressed the Board regarding the need for bond funding 
for L’Anse Creuse schools.   
 
Ms. Gail Ashburn, teacher and parent in the district, addressed the Board regarding her support for 
moving forward with a bond for the district. 
 
Mr. Michael Bilen, teacher and in the district, addressed the Board regarding his support for a bond in 
the district. 
 
Mr. Ken Grix, teacher and parent in the district, addressed the Board regarding his support for placing 
a bond on an election ballot. 
 
Mr. Keith Weiand, teacher in the district, addressed the Board regarding upgrading facilities and 
supporting bond funding. 

 
E. Department Update 

 
The Curriculum, Business, Human Resources, Support Services, and Technology Departments 
provided an informational update for the Board on the progress of work and projects occurring within 
their department. Discussion followed. 
 

F. Consent Agenda 
 

Motion by Mrs. Servial, supported by Mrs. Ross, to approve the following Consent Agenda items as 
presented: 

 
F.1. Budget Report 
F.2. Quarterly Budget Update 
F.3. Payment Registers 
F.4. Bid Award Recommendations 
F.5. Purchases 
F.6. Overtime Report 
F.7. Summary of Investments 
F.8. Summary of Wire Transfers 
F.9. Accounts Payable Check Register Schedule 
F.10. Employment Recommendations 
F.11. Student Travel Requests 
F.12.a November 20, 2023 Committee of the Whole Meeting minutes 
F.12.b. November 27, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes  
F.12.c. November 30, 2023 Special Meeting Minutes 

 
Roll Call Vote: 



L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF DECEMBER 15, 2023  PAGE 3 
 
 
Yes: Servial, Ross, Dubay, Da Via, Doss, Lipski, Sellers 
No: None 
Motion carried. 

 
G. Superintendent’s Office 

 
G.1. Mr. Edoff shared information on a new pilot program in Macomb County where 25 college students 

are certified to work as substitutes while they obtain their degree in education.  He shared that he is 
proud of this opportunity and that there is currently a need for this in all school districts.  He stated that 
he is pleased to see young individuals choosing education as their career.  

 
G.2. Mr. Edoff presented a Bond Application for approval by the Board to start the process in applying to 

the Michigan State Department of Treasury to place a bond proposal on the election ballot in May 2024. 
 

Motion by Mr. Doss, supported by Mr. Lipski, to approve the Bond Application as presented. 
 
Discussion followed. 
 

 Roll Call Vote: 
 Yes: Doss, Lipski, Da Via, Servial, Ross, Dubay 
 No: Sellers 
 Motion carried. 
 
G.3. Motion by Mr. Doss, supported by Mr. Da Via, to approve the Expense Reimbursement by Bond 

Proceeds Resolution as presented. 
 
Discussion followed. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes: Doss, Da Via, Dubay, Lipski, Ross, Servial 
No: Sellers 
Motion carried. 
 

H. Human Resources Office 
 
H.1. Dr. Dixon presented the TPOAM Tentative Agreement for the Board’s approval. 

 
Motion by Mr. Lipski, supported by Mr. Doss, to approve the TPOAM Tentative Agreement as 
presented. 
 
Yes: Lipski, Doss, Sellers, Ross, Servial, Dubay, Da Via 
No: None 
Motion carried. 
 

I. Support Services Office  
 
I.1. Motion by Mrs. Servial, supported by Mr. Lipski, to approve the Bus Purchase Recommendation to 

purchase three off-lease buses from Hoestra Transportation in the amount of $235,748.00 as presented. 
 
 Yes: All 
 No: None 
 Motion carried. 
 



L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF DECEMBER 15, 2023  PAGE 4 
 
 
I.2. Motion by Mrs. Servial, supported by Mrs. Ross, to approve the Fuel Tank Repair recommendation as 

presented in the amount of $38,382.11. 
 
 Yes: All 
 No: None 
 Motion carried. 

 
J. Hearing of School District Patrons Follow Up 
 
 No patrons addressed the Board at this time. 
 
K. Closed Session – Negotiations and Superintendent’s Evaluation 

 
Motion by Mr. Doss, supported by Mr. Sellers to move into Closed Session pursuant to Section 8 (a,c) of 
the Open Meetings Act at 4:48 p.m. for a Negotiations Update and the Superintendent’s Evaluation. 
 
Roll Call Vote: 
Yes: Doss, Sellers, Lipski, Dubay, Da Via, Ross, Servial 
No: None 
Motion carried. 
 
Motion by Mr. Sellers, supported by Mr. Lipski to reconvene to Regular Session at 5:25 p.m. 
 
Yes: Sellers, Lipski, Doss, Servial, Ross, Dubay, Da Via 
No: None 
Motion Carried. 
 
Mrs. Dubay addressed the Superintendent’s annual evaluation and stated that through the evaluation 
process, the Board has come to the conclusion to assign a Highly Effective rating to the Superintendent 
for the 2022-2023 School Year.  Ms. Dubay also issued a statement to accompany the Highly Effective 
rating as follows: 

 
Throughout the 2022-2023 school year, our Superintendent Erik Edoff, has demonstrated 
exceptional leadership and dedication to advancing our educational community. His 
visionary approach, effective communication, and collaborative spirit has fostered a 
positive and encouraging environment, resulting in tangible improvements to our overall 
district success. Superintendent Edoff’s commitment to innovation and continuous 
improvement in our district, the Tri-County area and the State Capital as well, reflects a 
strong understanding of the evolving needs of our district.  His proactive initiatives have 
positioned us for continued growth and success. We commend Superintendent Edoff for his 
outstanding performance and look forward to building on this foundation for even greater 
achievements in the future. It is for these reasons amongst others that the L’Anse Creuse 
Board of Education has given our Superintendent, Erik Edoff an evaluation rating of highly 
effective for the 2022-2023 school year. 

 
Motion by Mrs. Ross, supported by Mr. Doss, to accept the Superintendent’s evaluation. 

 
Yes: All  
No: None 
Motion carried. 
 
Motion to approve Mr. Sellers, supported by Mr. Doss, to approve the Superintendent’s Contract with 
amendments as presented. 



L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF DECEMBER 15, 2023  PAGE 5 
 
 
Yes: All  
No: None 
Motion carried. 
 

L. Board Member Comment 
 
Mr.  Da Via stated that he is gratified for his former students to attend and see the fundraising work they 
are doing for special needs.  
 

M. Adjournment 
 
 Motion by, Mr. Sellers, supported by Mrs. Ross, to adjourn the meeting at 5:30 p.m.   
 
 Yes: All 

No: None 
Motion carried. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Sharon L. Ross, Secretary 
Board of Education 
SLR:nt 



Erik J. Edoff 
SUPERINTENDENT  

 
HUMAN RESOURCES 

 

Dr. Greg Dixon 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR HUMAN RESOURCES 
 

Anita Dzieszkowski 
COORDINATOR FOR 

HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300  
586.783.6311 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

BOARD OF EDUCATION 
 

Adam D. Lipski Hilary E. Dubay Sharon L. Ross Amelia A. Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane W. Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE TRUSTEE 
 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 
in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 
Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 
Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

HARRY L. WHEELER COMMUNITY CENTER 
AND ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Initiator:  Greg Dixon 
  
Board Meeting:  January 29, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Teamsters 214 Tentative Agreement 
  

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

 
 
Background:   
The 2020-25 collective bargaining agreement between the district and Teamsters 214 Employees was ratified on 
September 29, 2020. The agreement included a full wage reopener The parties have negotiated in good faith over 
a number of sessions and a tentative agreement on wage increases was reached on January 17, 2024. 
 
Current Status:   
The union sought and obtained ratification of the tentative agreement by its membership on January 24, 2024. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion:   
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve the Tentative Agreement as presented. 
 
 
GD/af 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

F.1. 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


TEAMSTERS - LCPS TENTATIVE AGREMENT 

 

Hourly Wage Increase 

Position Current Step Proposed 
Rate 

Probationary Driver $19.50 $20.09 

Permanent Driver $19.93 $20.53 

Perennial Driver $20.33 $20.94 

Perpetual Driver +5yrs - $22.50 

 

  

 

• District maintains the option to grant steps to new hires with experience. 

• 2023-2024 wage increases would be retroactive to August 2023 based on actual hours 

worked. 

• The base hourly rate for a driver accepting a double run will be increased x2 for each 

double run accepted. 

• Drivers serving as a reference on the application of a candidate for an unfilled driver 

position will receive $50.00, up to 5 times per school year per existing driver. 

• Drivers serving as a reference on the application of a candidate for an unfilled driver 

position will receive $100.00 when the candidate is hired, up to 5 times per school year 

per existing driver. 

• Drivers serving as a reference on the application of a candidate for an unfilled driver 

position will receive $250.00 when the candidate completes a full calendar year of 

employment with the District, up to 5 times per school year per existing driver. 

 

Position Current Step 
 

Proposed 
Rate 

Probationary Aide $15.79 $16.26 

Permanent Aide $16.32 $16.81 

Perennial Aide $16.91 $17.42 

Perpetual Aide +5yrs - $18.72 



BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Adam Lipski Hilary Dubay Sharon Ross Amelia Servial John Da Via Al Doss Shane Sellers 
PRESIDENT VICE PRESIDENT SECRETARY  TREASURER TRUSTEE TRUSTEE  TRUSTEE 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or 
marital status in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, 
L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries 
related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 

Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT 

Lisa E. Montpas 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT 

FOR CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION 

Kimberly Rawski 
DIRECTOR FOR 

SECONDARY EDUCATION 

Laura Dixon 
DIRECTOR FOR 

ELEMENTARY EDUCATION 

24076 F.V. PANKOW BLVD. 
CLINTON TWP., MI  48036-1304 

586.783.6300 
586.783.6312 FAX 

WWW.LC-PS.ORG

 

DEPARTMENT OF CURRICULUM AND INSTRUCTION 

Initiator: Lisa Montpas 

Board Meeting: January 29, 2024 

Agenda Item:  Schools of Choice Program 

 Board Action Required   CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other_______________________ 

Background:  
Pursuant to Section 105 of the Michigan Public Schools Code, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools  
entered into the Michigan Schools of Choice Program beginning in the 2005-2006 school year. 

Current Status: 
Participating in Schools of Choice is a decision made annually by the Board of Education. To support 
this decision, administration prepares a presentation containing information regarding Schools of 
Choice for the 2024-2025 school year. 

Future Direction Recommended Motion: 
Administration recommends the Board motion to approve and authorize administration to execute 
unlimited Kindergarten through Grade 5, limited Middle School (70 seats total), limited Grades 9 & 10 
(20 seats total), and limited criteria-based programs (Grade 10 = 6 seats, Grade 11 = 10 seats) 

G.1. 

http://www.lc-ps.org/


1December 6, 2023



2

L’Anse Creuse
Decline in K-12 Student Enrollment

2013-2014 thru 2023-2024

Year
Decline in Students 

(based on Fall 
head count)

Annual Funding 
Impact

Cumulative 
Funding Impact

2013/14 (288) ($2,145,888) ($5,371,416)

2014/15 (191) ($1,432,691) ($6,804,107)

2015/16 (309) ($2,357,361) ($9,161,468)

2016/17 (122) ($944,036) ($10,105,504)

2017/18 (195) ($1,530,165) ($11,635,669)

2018/19 (121) ($975,865) ($12,611,534)

2019/20 (209) ($1,730,938) ($14,342,472)

2020/21 (290) ($2,484,848) ($16,827,320)

2021-22 (222) ($1,921,400) ($18,748,872)

2022-23 (335) ($3,065,250) ($21,814,122)

2023-24 (109) ($1,047,272) ($22,861,394)

Total (2,407) ($22,861,394)



Difference between Kindergarten (656) and Graduated Seniors (738)
82

All other students lost 21

Total Students lost 109

Fall 2023
K-12 Student Decline

3



4



5

Category: Number of Students
New External SOC: 186
Move outs**: 54

Total of 2023-2024 External SOC Students 240

**Students who attended L’Anse Creuse, moved out and applied for 
External School of Choice to remain in L’Anse Creuse

2023-2024 Schools of Choice students who were 
L'Anse Creuse move outs:

(based on enrollment as of 10/4/2023)

Percent of 2023-2024 School of Choice students who were LCPS students: 22.50%

Percent of 2023-2024 LCPS students that are SOC 16.35%

Current number of SOC students in the district is 1,534.



6

Schools of Choice Foundation Allowance
2023-2024 

District Code District Name

Home District 
Foundation
Allowance Number of Students

Foundation
Allowance 
Received by
L'Anse Creuse**

Total Foundation 
Allowance by 
District for 
External SOC

50020 Eastpointe $9,608.00 41 $9,608.00 $393,928 
50030 Roseville 9,608.00 99 9,608.00 $951,192 
50040 Anchor Bay 9,608.00 100 9,608.00 $960,800 
50010 Center Line 10,942.00 4 9,608.00 $38,432 
50070 Clintondale 9,608.00 243 9,608.00 $2,334,744 
50080 Chippewa Valley 9,608.00 151 9,608.00 $1,450,808 
50050 Armada 9,608.00 1 9,608.00 $9,608 
50090 Fitzgerald 9,608.00 3 9,608.00 $28,824 
50100 Fraser 9,608.00 21 9,608.00 $201,768 
50120 Lake Shore 9,608.00 51 9,608.00 $490,008 
50130 Lakeview 9,608.00 14 9,608.00 $134,512 
50160 Mount Clemens 9,608.00 572 9,608.00 $5,495,776 
50170 New Haven 9,608.00 146 9,608.00 $1,402,768 
50190 Romeo 9,608.00 4 9,608.00 $38,432 
50180 Richmond 9,608.00 7 9,608.00 $67,256 
50200 South Lake 10,313.00 4 9,608.00 $38,432 
50210 Utica 9,608.00 26 9,608.00 $249,808 
50220 Van Dyke 9,608.00 8 9,608.00 $76,864 
50230 Warren Consolidated 10,445.00 32 9,608.00 $307,456 
50240 Warren Woods 10,077.00 7 9,608.00 $67,256 
Total 2023-2024 Foundation Allowance 1534 $14,738,672 



7

Macomb County Schools of Choice 
Participation for 2023- 2024

District
2023-2024

Foundation Allowance

2023-2024
Section 105

(within Macomb ISD boundary)

2023-2024
Section 105c (contiguous 

to Macomb ISD 
boundary)

2023-2024
Level of Participation

(Grade level, program, etc)
Anchor Bay $9,608.00 Yes Yes K-8 Unlimited/9-12 Limited

Armada $9,608.00 Yes Yes K-12 Unlimited

Center Line $10,942.00 Yes No K Unlimited/1-12 Limited

Chippewa Valley $9,608.00 Yes No K-12 Unlimited

Clintondale $9,608.00 Yes Yes K-12 Unlimited

Eastpointe $9,608.00 Yes Yes K-12 Unlimited; 2nd semester K-10 Limited

Fitzgerald $9,608.00 Yes Yes
Macomb:  K-12 Unlimited Wayne/Oakland: K-5 

Unlimited;6-12 Limited

Fraser $9,608.00 Yes No K-11 Unlimited; 2nd Semester K-7 Limited

Lake Shore $9,608.00 Yes No K-11 Unlimited

Lakeview $9,608.00 Yes No K-10 Unlimited; 2nd Semester  K-10 Limited

L'Anse Creuse $9,608.00 Yes No
Kindergarten – 8 Unlimited

9-10 Limited

Mt Clemens $9,608.00 Yes Yes K-12 Unlimited

New Haven $9,608.00 Yes No Y5-12 Unlimited

Richmond $9,608.00 Yes Yes K-12 Unlimited

Romeo $9,608.00 Yes Yes K-12 Unlimited

Roseville $9,608.00 Yes No K-12 Unlimited

South Lake $10,313.00 Yes No K-12 Unlimited; 2nd Semester K-11 Unlimited

Utica $9,608.00 Yes Yes K-12 Unlimited

Van Dyke $9,608.00 Yes No

Macomb:  K-12 Unlimited Wayne/Oakland: 
Limited; 

2nd Semester 6-12 Macomb; 2nd Semester 6,9,10 
NonMacomb

Warren Con $10,445.00 Yes No K-12 Unlimited; 2nd Semester K-12 Unlimited

Warren Woods $10,077.00 Yes No Not available

100% of Macomb Cty.
Schools participate in

Schools of Choice

43% of Macomb Cty.
Schools participate in 

Out of County 
Schools of Choice

71% of Macomb Cty. Schools
Offer K-12 Schools of Choice



8
Cont’d. on next page

2022- 2023
Gains/Loss Report  - Macomb County

LEA/PSA Name
 Nonresident 

Students (FTE)
 Students 

Elsewhere (FTE)
Net 

Gain/(Loss)
Anchor Bay School District 120.99 132.66 (11.67)
Armada Area Schools 1.33 3.00 (1.67)
Center Line Public Schools 4.00 1.00 3.00
Chippewa Valley Schools 197.01 169.00 28.01
Clintondale Community Schools 242.00 68.00 174.00
Eastpointe Community Schools 53.00 1.00 52.00
Fitzgerald Public Schools 2.00 5.00 (3.00)
Fraser Public Schools 29.00 45.00 (16.00)
Lake Shore Public Schools (Macomb) 65.91 99.35 (33.44)
Lakeview Public Schools (Macomb) 20.11 67.86 (47.75)
Mount Clemens Community School District 624.15 4.00 620.15
New Haven Community Schools 170.36 21.43 148.93


Non-ResidentStatusSnapshot

		LEA/PSA Name		 Nonresident Students (FTE)		 Students Elsewhere (FTE)		Net Gain/(Loss)

		Anchor Bay School District		120.99		132.66		(11.67)

		Armada Area Schools		1.33		3.00		(1.67)

		Center Line Public Schools		4.00		1.00		3.00

		Chippewa Valley Schools		197.01		169.00		28.01

		Clintondale Community Schools		242.00		68.00		174.00

		Eastpointe Community Schools		53.00		1.00		52.00

		Fitzgerald Public Schools		2.00		5.00		(3.00)

		Fraser Public Schools		29.00		45.00		(16.00)

		Lake Shore Public Schools (Macomb)		65.91		99.35		(33.44)

		Lakeview Public Schools (Macomb)		20.11		67.86		(47.75)

		Mount Clemens Community School District		624.15		4.00		620.15

		New Haven Community Schools		170.36		21.43		148.93

























		Total FTE		2881.89		1161.52		1,720.37







2022 - 2023
Gains/Loss Report  - Macomb County

9

LEA/PSA Name

Number of 
Nonresident 

Students (FTE)

Number of LCPS 
Students 

Elsewhere (FTE)
Net 

Gain/(Loss)
Richmond Community Schools 9.00 13.00 (4.00)
Romeo Community Schools 6.60 20.94 (14.34)
Roseville Community Schools 113.65 21.00 92.65 
South Lake Schools 8.00 20.00 (12.00)
Utica Community Schools 40.14 59.00 (18.86)
Van Dyke Public Schools 11.00 3.00 8.00 
Warren Consolidated Schools 34.00 22.00 12.00 
Warren Woods Public Schools 5.00 8.01 (3.01)
Pontiac City School District 1.00 0.00 1.00
Algonac Community School District 4.00 5.00 -1.00
East China School District 2.33 3.00 -0.67
Marysville Public Schools 1.00 1.00 0.00
Memphis Community Schools 1.27 2.00 -0.73
Port Huron Area School District 5.00 0.00 5.00
Detroit Public Schools Community District 2.00 6.00 -4.00
Grosse Pointe Public Schools 0.33 0.00 0.33
Total FTE 1,774.18 801.25 972.93


Non-ResidentStatusSnapshot

		LEA/PSA Name		Number of Nonresident Students (FTE)		Number of LCPS Students Elsewhere (FTE)		Net Gain/(Loss)

		Richmond Community Schools		9.00		13.00		(4.00)

		Romeo Community Schools		6.60		20.94		(14.34)

		Roseville Community Schools		113.65		21.00		92.65

		South Lake Schools		8.00		20.00		(12.00)

		Utica Community Schools		40.14		59.00		(18.86)

		Van Dyke Public Schools		11.00		3.00		8.00

		Warren Consolidated Schools		34.00		22.00		12.00

		Warren Woods Public Schools		5.00		8.01		(3.01)

		Pontiac City School District		1.00		0.00		1.00

		Algonac Community School District		4.00		5.00		-1.00

		East China School District		2.33		3.00		-0.67

		Marysville Public Schools		1.00		1.00		0.00

		Memphis Community Schools		1.27		2.00		-0.73

		Port Huron Area School District		5.00		0.00		5.00

		Detroit Public Schools Community District		2.00		6.00		-4.00

		Grosse Pointe Public Schools		0.33		0.00		0.33

		Total FTE		1,774.18		801.25		972.93









Administration’s Recommendation

10

Continue participation in the Michigan Schools of Choice program, Section 105:

• Unlimited Kindergarten – Grade 5 
• Limited Middle School = 70 seats total 
• Limited Grades 9 & 10 = 20 seats total 
• Limited Criterion Based Programs (MST, Performing Arts, etc.) 

 Grade 10 = 6 seats 
 Grade 11 = 10 seats



11



L’Anse Creuse Traditional High School Students
Grade Point Average Comparison

10th – 12th grade

Year Resident Schools of 
Choice

Two traditional high schools average 2015-2016 2.867 2.716

2016-2017 2.842 2.808

2017-2018 2.872 2.844

2018-2019 2.917 2.958

2019-2020 2.953 2.932

2020-2021 3.247 3.136

2021-2022 2.750 2.808

2022-2023 2.786 2.770

12



L’Anse Creuse Middle and High Schools
Student Suspensions

2022-2023
(September 6, 2022 – June 30, 2023)

13

School Year

Middle School
Resident 
Students 

Suspended

Schools of 
Choice Students 

Suspended
2019-2020 186 40

2020-2021 131 25

2021-2022 151 25

2022-2023 151 41

Numbers have been verified for accuracy

School Year

High School

Resident 
Students 

Suspended

Schools of 
Choice Students 

Suspended
2019-2020 109 14

2020-2021 77 18

2021-2022 53 25

2022-2023 115 34



Approximate Cost to Educate Students

14

Elementary Middle School High School

2022-2023 (includes
transportation) 

Calculated 
(variable & fixed)

$12,007 $11,933 $11,346

2022-2023 (resident
students without 
transportation & SOC) 

Calculated 
(variable & fixed)

$11,342 $11,268 $10,680

Note: Costs and funding are averages.  Some students are less 
expensive while others are more based on needs.



Erik J. Edoff 
 SUPERINTENDENT  

 

SUPPORT SERVICES 
 

Don Gratton 
                 DIRECTOR FOR OPERATIONS 

 
Randy T. Baker 

SUPERVISOR FOR  
MAINTENANCE & CUSTODIAL SERVICES  

 
Kim Bryer and Holly Vitale 

CO-SUPERVISORs FOR TRANSPORTATION 

24400 F.V. PANKOW BOULEVARD CLINTON TOWNSHIP, MI  48036-1305 586-783-6550 586-783-6556 FAX WWW.LC-PS.ORG 

NOTICE OF NONDISCRIMINATION.  It is the policy of L’Anse Creuse Public Schools not to discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin or ancestry, gender, age, disability, height, weight or marital status 
in its programs, services, activities, or employment.  Inquiries related to nondiscrimination policies should be directed to: Civil Rights Coordinator, Assistant Superintendent for Human Resources, L’Anse Creuse Public Schools, 
Harry L. Wheeler Community Center and Administrative Offices, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Twp.,, MI 48036, and (586) 783-6300. Nondiscrimination inquiries related to disability should be directed to:  Section 504 
Coordinator, Director for Special Education, (586) 783-6300. 
 

LARRY F. BRENDER SUPPORT SERVICES CENTER 

 
 
   
Initiator:                        Don Gratton 
 
Board Meeting: January 29, 2024 
 
Agenda Item:  Select Kitchen Renovations 
 
 

 Board Action Required     CONFIDENTIAL 
 Informational Material 
 Other       _______________________ 

 
 
Background: 
Administration has determined that the addition of exhaust ventilation hoods at Atwood and 
Pellerin and upgrades to some kitchen equipment along with improving the flow of the serving 
lines at Yacks and Middle School Central.   
 
Current Status: 
In collaboration with our design partners specifications and a scope of work was created. Bids 
were solicited and two bids were received. D & S Contractors Inc. ($618,735) and City 
Contracting Services, Inc. ($1,177,000). Post bid interviews were held with both companies. 
Both of the companies were able to answer all questions satisfactorily, understood the project 
scope, timelines and confirmed they had submitted complete bids. Due to the nature of the 
scope of work, it is recommended to create a construction contingency budget of $60,000.00 to 
cover any unforeseen situations that may arise.  
 
This project would be funded by Food and Nutrition’s fund balance (unspent dollars are 
returned to the F&N budget). The A/E cost for this project is estimated to be in the area of 
$64,000.00 - $66,000.00. 
 
Future Direction (Notes or Comments)/Recommended Motion: 
Administration recommends that the Board motion to approve awarding the Kitchen 
renovation project to D & S Contractors Inc. for the sum of $618,000.00 with a contingency 
budget of $60,000.00 and a design cost and project oversite of approximately $66,000.00 for a 
total project cost of $744,000.00. This project would be funded using the Food & Nutrition fund 
balance. 



 

 

January 8, 2024 
 
Re:  L’Anse Creuse Public Schools District Wide Kitchen Improvements  
Contractor Award Recommendation 
PIA Project # 22-161 
 
 
Dear Mr. Gratton; 
 
On December 19, 2023, we received a total of two bid proposals for the L’Anse Creuse Public 
Schools District Wide Kitchen Improvements project.  Renovations to existing school kitchens 
will be completed at Atwood Elementary, Yacks Elementary, Middle School Central and the 
DiAnne M. Pellerin Center as a part of this contract.  The proposals were for $618,735.00 and 
$1,177,000.00.  A copy of the bid tabulation is attached for your review.    
 
The purpose of this project is to add exhaust ventilation to Atwood and Pellerin kitchens, 
upgrade kitchen and serving equipment at all locations and improve serving lines at Yacks and 
Middle School Central. 

 
On January 5, 2024, you, I and Michael Malone completed virtual post-bid interviews with both 
bidders, D & S Contractors, Inc. ($618,735), and City Contracting Services, Inc. ($1,177,000).  
We discussed their bid proposal, their qualifications, similar work experience and overall 
understanding of the project scope.  Both contractors confirmed that they have submitted 
complete bid proposals and both had conveyed a clear understanding of the project scope. 
 
Based on review of the bids, the post bid interviews and follow up discussions, PARTNERS in 
Architecture recommends awarding the construction contract to the lowest responsible bidder, 
D&S Contractors, Inc. for their base bid amount of $618,735.00.  Based on the post bid 
interview, D & S has stated that this project fits into their current schedule and that they can 
begin work as soon as school operations allow. 

 
In addition to the contract award amount, we recommend budgeting a construction contingency 
in the amount of $60,000 to cover potential unforeseen items that could arise during 
construction.  It is important to note the construction contingency remains in the possession of 
the District at all times and is only a budgeted amount allocated for potential cost changes.  All 
cost changes will be presented to the District for approval prior to proceeding. 
 
Please present the above recommendation to the Board of Education for approval. If approved, 
we will issue a notice of award to D&S Contractors, Inc., assemble the Owner – Contractor 
Agreement (AIA Document A101) and schedule a project kickoff meeting as soon as possible.  
Please contact me if you have any questions or concerns. 
 
If you need additional information or have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact 
myself or Michael Malone. 
 
Sincerely, 
PARTNERS in Architecture, PLC 
 
 
Stephen Lechman, Assoc. AIA 

Enclosures: Bid Tabulation 
Cc: File 22-161; Rochelle O’Malley, Michael Malone 

Mr. Donald Gratton 
Director of Operations 

L’Anse Creuse Public Schools 
24400 F.V. Pankow Blvd. 

Clinton Township, MI 48036 
 
 
 





 
 

L'Anse Creuse Public Schools, Macomb County, Michigan (the “District”) 

A Special  meeting of the board of education of the District (the “Board”) was held in the 
Harry L. Wheeler Communtiy Center and Administrative Offices, within the boundaries of the 
District, on the 29th day of January, 2024, at 6:30 o’clock in the p.m. (the “Meeting”). 

The Meeting was called to order by _____________________, President. 

Present: Members                                 

Absent: Members                                 

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Member ___________________ 
and supported by Member ____________________: 

WHEREAS:  

1. In the opinion of this Board it is necessary and expedient to ask voters whether to 
approve a bond project consisting of: 

• remodeling, furnishing and refurnishing, and equipping and re-equipping 
school buildings, including for school security; 

• erecting, furnishing, and equipping new school facilities and additions to school 
buildings; 

• acquiring and installing instructional technology; 

• equipping, preparing, developing, and improving athletic fields and facilities, 
playgrounds, and sites; 

• acquiring sites; and 

• purchasing school buses. 

2. This Board estimates the necessary cost of the project to be Three Hundred Thirty-
Three Million Nine Hundred Seventy Thousand Six Hundred Sixty-Four Dollars ($333,970,664). 

3. It will be necessary for the District to borrow the sum of Three Hundred Thirty 
Million Dollars ($330,000,000) and issue the bonds of the District therefor, the remaining funds 
to be derived from the investment of the bond proceeds. 

4. This Board intends to submit a proposition at a special election to be held on 
Tuesday, May 7, 2024. 

5. On or before 4:00 p.m. on Tuesday, February 13, 2024, the Board shall certify any 
ballot proposition to be submitted to the voters at such election to the election coordinator or 
coordinators designated to conduct elections within the District (the “Election Coordinator”). 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT: 



 
 

2 

1. A special election of the school electors of the District be called and held on 
Tuesday, May 7, 2024. 

2. The proposition to be voted on at the special election shall be stated on the ballots 
in substantially the form as set forth in Exhibit A.  

3. The Election Coordinator is requested to: 

a. Utilize The Macomb Daily, a newspaper published or of general circulation within 
the District, for publication of notices in accordance with the election law 
requirements. 

b. Utilize ballot proposition summary information, as prepared by legal counsel, in 
the forms of the notices of last day of registration and election in substantially the 
form as set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto. 

c. Provide a proof copy of the ballot to the District and its legal counsel in sufficient 
time to allow the ballot to be proofread prior to printing. 

4. This Board estimates the period of usefulness of the improvements for which bonds 
of the District in the amount of Three Hundred Thirty Million Dollars ($330,000,000) are to be 
issued to be not less than twenty-six (26) years. 

5. The Secretary of this Board is hereby authorized and directed to file a copy of this 
resolution with the Election Coordinator and with any Election Clerk or clerks designated to 
conduct elections within the District by 4:00 p.m., on Tuesday, February 13, 2024. 

6. All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions 
of this resolution be and the same are hereby rescinded. 

Ayes:  Members                 

Nays:  Members                  

Resolution declared adopted. 

  
Secretary, Board of Education 

The undersigned duly qualified and acting Secretary of the Board of Education of L'Anse 
Creuse Public Schools, Macomb County, Michigan, hereby certifies that the foregoing constitutes 
a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by the Board at the Meeting, the original of which 
is part of the Board’s minutes. The undersigned further certifies that notice of the Meeting was 
given to the public pursuant to the provisions of the “Open Meetings Act” (Act 267, Public Acts 
of Michigan, 1976, as amended). 

  
Secretary, Board of Education 

FGH/baf 
  



 
 

3 

EXHIBIT A 
 
 L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS  
 BOND PROPOSAL 

Shall L'Anse Creuse Public Schools, Macomb County, Michigan, borrow the sum of not to exceed 
Three Hundred Thirty Million Dollars ($330,000,000) and issue its general obligation unlimited 
tax bonds therefor, in one or more series, for the purpose of: 

• remodeling, furnishing and refurnishing, and equipping and re-
equipping school buildings, including for school security; 

• erecting, furnishing, and equipping new school facilities and additions 
to school buildings; 

• acquiring and installing instructional technology;  
• equipping, preparing, developing, and improving athletic fields and 

facilities, playgrounds, and sites; 
• acquiring sites; and 
• purchasing school buses? 

The following is for informational purposes only: 

The estimated millage that will be levied for the proposed bonds in 2024, under current law, is 
0.00 mill ($0 on each $1,000 of taxable valuation) for a -0- mill net increase over the prior year’s 
levy. The maximum number of years the bonds of any series may be outstanding, exclusive of any 
refunding, is twenty-five (25) years. The estimated simple average annual millage anticipated to 
be required to retire this bond debt is 3.67 mills ($3.67 on each $1,000 of taxable valuation). 

The school district expects to borrow from the State School Bond Qualification and Loan Program 
to pay debt service on these bonds. The estimated total principal amount of that borrowing is 
$35,718,529 and the estimated total interest to be paid thereon is $54,287,993. The estimated 
duration of the millage levy associated with that borrowing is 21 years and the estimated computed 
millage rate for such levy is 7.00 mills. The estimated computed millage rate may change based 
on changes in certain circumstances. 

The total amount of qualified bonds currently outstanding is $187,750,000. The total amount of 
qualified loans currently outstanding is approximately $24,689,928. 

(Pursuant to State law, expenditure of bond proceeds must be audited and the proceeds cannot be 
used for repair or maintenance costs, teacher, administrator or employee salaries, or other 
operating expenses.) 

 



 
 

4 

EXHIBIT B 
 
 

SUMMARY OF BALLOT PROPOSITION TO BE INSERTED IN THE 
NOTICES OF LAST DAY OF REGISTRATION AND ELECTION: 

 
 L'ANSE CREUSE PUBLIC SCHOOLS 

GENERAL OBLIGATION UNLIMITED TAX BOND PROPOSAL 
FOR BUILDING AND SITE PURPOSES IN THE AMOUNT OF 

NOT TO EXCEED $330,000,000 

 Full text of the ballot proposition may be obtained at the administrative offices of L'Anse 
Creuse Public Schools, 24076 F. V. Pankow Blvd., Clinton Township, Michigan 48036, telephone: 
(586) 783-6300.  
 
 PLEASE TAKE FURTHER NOTICE THAT THE BONDS OF THE SCHOOL 
DISTRICT, IF APPROVED BY A MAJORITY VOTE OF THE ELECTORS AT THIS 
ELECTION, WILL BE GENERAL OBLIGATION UNLIMITED TAX BONDS PAYABLE 
FROM GENERAL AD VALOREM TAXES. 


	1.29.24 Special Mtg Agenda
	E.1. Budget Report
	E.2. Quarterly Budget Update
	E.3. Payment Registers
	E.4. Bid Award Recommendations
	E.5. Purchases
	E.6. Overtime Report
	E.7. Summary of Investments
	E.8. Summary of Wire Transfers
	E.9. Accounts Payable Check Register Approval Reminder
	E.10. Employment Recommendations
	E.11. Student Travel Requests
	E.12. December 15, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES
	A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call
	Roll Call
	B. Approval of Agenda
	C. Presentations
	D. Hearing of School District Patrons
	E. Department Update
	F. Consent Agenda
	Roll Call Vote:
	G. Superintendent’s Office

	G.1. Schools of Choice Recommendation
	H.1. Kitchen Renovations
	I.2. Election Resolution
	G.1. Schools of Choice Recommendation.pdf
	2023-2024 Enrollment Presentation.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14


	E.12. December 15, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes.pdf
	BOARD OF EDUCATION
	REGULAR BOARD MEETING MINUTES
	A. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance, Roll Call
	Roll Call
	B. Approval of Agenda
	C. Presentations
	D. Hearing of School District Patrons
	E. Department Update
	F. Consent Agenda
	Roll Call Vote:
	G. Superintendent’s Office




